Conciliation Agreement
Between the
U.S. Department of Labor Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs
And
Navient Corporation

OFCCP Case Numbers R00304344, R00304239, and R00211083

L Preliminary Statement

The Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs (OFCCP) evaluated Navient Corporation.
OFCCP found that Navient Corporation (Navient) failed to comply with Executive Order 11246,
as amended (“E.O. 11246 or the Executive Order”) and its respective implementing regulations
at 41 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Parts 60-1, 60-2, and 60-3.

In the interest of resolving the alleged violations without engaging in further legal proceedings
and in exchange for sufficient and valuable consideration described in this document, OFCCP
and Navient enter into this Agreement and its attachments, which are incorporated by reference
into this Agreement; and the parties agree to all the terms herein.

II. General Terms and Conditions

1. In exchange for Navient’s fulfillment of its obligations in this Agreement, OFCCP will
not institute administrative or judicial enforcement proceedings under E.O. 11246.
However, OFCCP retains the right to initiate legal proceedings to enforce this Agreement
if Navient violates any provision of this Agreement, as set forth in Paragraph 11, below.
Nothing in this Agreement precludes OFCCP from initiating enforcement proceedings
based on future compliance evaluations or complaint investigations.

2. OFCCP may review Navient’s compliance with this Agreement. As part of this review,
OFCCP may require written reports, inspect the premises, interview witnesses, and
examine and copy documents. Navient will permit access to its premises during normal
business hours for these purposes and will provide OFCCP with all hard copy or
electronic reports and documents it reasonably requests, including those specified in this
Agreement.

3. Nothing in this Agreement relieves Navient of its obligation to fully comply with the
requirements of E.O. 11246, Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended,
29 U.S.C. § 793 (“Section 503”), and the Vietnam Era Veterans’ Readjustment
Assistance Act of 1974, as amended, 38 U.S.C. § 4212 (“VEVRAA”), their
implementing regulations, or other applicable laws requiring nondiscrimination or equal
employment opportunity through affirmative action.

4. Navient and OFCCP agree that any release of claims required by this Agreement will
only pertain to claims under E.O. 11246.
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10.

11.

Navient agrees that it will not retaliate against any potential or actual beneficiary of this
Agreement or against any person who files a complaint, who has provided information or
assistance, or who participates in any manner in any proceeding in this matter.

The parties understand the terms of this Agreement and enter into it voluntarily.

This Agreement, including its attachments, constitutes the entire Agreement and
represents the complete and final understanding of the parties. This Agreement contains
all of the terms binding the parties and it supersedes all prior written and oral negotiations
and agreements. Any modifications or amendments to this Agreement must be agreed
upon in writing and signed by all parties. If an administrative error is found, the parties
will work in good faith to make the corrections.

This Agreement becomes effective on the day it is signed by the Mid-Atlantic Regional
Director (“Effective Date™).

If one or more provisions of this Agreement is deemed unlawful or unenforceable, the
remaining provisions will remain in full force and effect.

This Agreement will expire sixty (60) days after Navient submits its progress report
required in Section V, below, unless OFCCP notifies Navient in writing before the
expiration date that Navient has failed to fulfill all of its obligations under the Agreement.
In this instance, the Agreement is automatically extended until the date that OFCCP
determines that Navient has met all of its obligations under the Agreement.

If Navient violates this Agreement:
a. The procedures at 41 C.F.R. 60-1.34 will govern:

i. OFCCP will send Navient a written notice stating the alleged violations and
summarizing any supporting evidence.

ii. Navient shall have fifteen (15) days from receipt of the notice to respond, except
in those cases in which such a delay would result in irreparable injury to the
employment rights of affected employees or applicants.

iii. If Navient is unable to demonstrate that it has not violated the Agreement, or if
OFCCP’s alleges irreparable injury, enforcement proceedings may be initiated
immediately without issuing a show cause notice or proceeding through any other
requirement.

iv. In the event of a breach of this Agreement by Navient, OFCCP may elect to
proceed to a hearing on the entire case and seek full make-whole relief, and not be
limited to the terms agreed to in the Agreement.

b. Navient may be subject to the sanctions set forth in Section 209 of the Executive
Order, 41 C.F.R. 60-1.27, and/or other appropriate relief for violating this Agreement.
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12. Navient denies any violation of the Executive Order and there has been no adjudication
on the merits regarding any such violation.

13. OFCCP may seek enforcement of this Agreement itself and is not required to present
proof of any underlying violations resolved by this Agreement.

14. The parties understand and agree that nothing in this Agreement is binding on other
governmental departments or agencies other than the Office of Federal Contract
Compliance Programs of the United States Department of Labor.

15. Each party shall bear its own fees and expenses with respect to this matter.

16. This Agreement is limited to the facts of this case. Neither this Agreement, nor any part
of the negotiations that occurred in connection with this Agreement, shall constitute
admissible evidence with respect to any OFCCP policy, practice or position in any
lawsuit, legal proceeding, administrative proceeding, compliance evaluation or audit,
except for legal or administrative proceedings concerning the enforcement or
interpretation of this specific Agreement.

17. All references to “days” in this Agreement, and in the Timeline included as Attachment
B, are calendar days. If any deadline for an obligation scheduled to be performed under
this Agreement falls on a weekend or a federal holiday, that deadline will be extended to
the next business day.

III. OFCCP’s Findings

1. VIOLATION: OFCCP found that, during the period of May 18, 2019 — May 17, 2021,
Navient was not in compliance with the nondiscrimination requirements of the equal
opportunity clause of E.O. 11246 section 202 and 41 CFR 60-1.4(a)(1). OFCCP
identified a statistically significant disparity (equivalent to a shortfall of seven (7)), not
otherwise explained, in the hiring of Black Customer Care Specialist I applicants on the
basis of race.

2. VIOLATION: OFCCP found that, during the period of August 1, 2019 through January
31, 2021, Navient was not in compliance with the nondiscrimination requirements of the
equal opportunity clause of E.O. 11246 section 202 and 41 CFR 60-1.4(a)(1). OFCCP
identified a statistically significant disparity (equivalent to a shortfall of thirty (30)), not
otherwise explained, in the hiring of Black Customer Care Specialist I applicants on the
basis of race.

3. VIOLATION: OFCCP found that, during the period of August 1, 2017 through January
31, 2019, Navient was not in compliance with the nondiscrimination requirements of the
equal opportunity clause of E.O. 11246 section 202 and 41 CFR 60-1.4(a)(1). OFCCP
identified a statistically significant disparity (equivalent to a shortfall of fifteen (15)), not
otherwise explained, in the hiring of White Job Group 5SE — Clerical applicants on the
basis of race.
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4. VIOLATION: OFCCP found that, during the period of August 1, 2017 through January
31, 2019, Navient was not in compliance with the nondiscrimination requirements of the
equal opportunity clause of E.O. 11246 section 202 and 41 CFR 60-1.4(a)(1). OFCCP
identified a statistically significant disparity (equivalent to a shortfall of eleven (11)), not
otherwise explained, in the hiring of Black Job Group SE — Clerical applicants on the
basis of race.

IV. Financial Remedy

1. Settlement Amount. Navient agrees to a settlement amount of Seven Hundred
Thousand Dollars and No Cents ($700,000.00) to resolve the OFCCP’s findings set forth
above. The total settlement amount includes $ 651,000 in back pay and $ 49,000 in
accrued interest (“Settlement Fund™).

2. Allocation

a. Total Amount to be Allocated. The Settlement Fund will be distributed pro rata
among the Eligible Applicants (defined below) as explained in this Section.
Navient’s share of statutory taxes/contributions on the portion representing back pay,
such as the Federal Income Contributions Act (“FICA™), the Federal Unemployment
Tax Act (“FUTA”), or other state and/or local taxes, is not part of the Settlement
Fund. Distributions to Eligible Applicants will include appropriate deductions
required by law on the portion representing back pay only, such as federal
FICA/FUTA, state, or local insurance premiums or taxes.

b. Affected Applicants Eligible to Receive Payments. The Settlement Fund will be
distributed, pro rata, to all Affected Applicants (identified in Attachments A-1, A-2,
and A-3) who timely respond to the Notice Process as explained below and whose
eligibility is verified (hereinafter, “Eligible Applicants”). These individuals will be
included in the Final List of Eligible Applicants (“Final List”). The process of
determining the Final List is explained below under Notice Process. OFCCP will
determine the final amount for each Eligible Applicant based on the formula or other
terms provided in this Agreement.

c. Payments to Eligible Applicants. OFCCP will provide Navient a list of the payment
amount for each Eligible Applicant on the Final List by the date set forth on the
Timeline. Navient will issue checks or make electronic payments to each Eligible
Applicant for the stated amount, along with appropriate tax reporting forms (such as
Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) Forms W-2 and 1099, if applicable) by the date set
forth on the Timeline. Navient will provide OFCCP with timely documentation of all
payments made to Eligible Applicants and any payments returned undelivered or any
checks not cashed, as set forth on the Timeline. Reasonable efforts will be made to
ensure that all Eligible Applicants listed on the Final List have an opportunity to
claim their portion of the settlement. When it is determined that an Eligible Applicant
did not receive a check or that a check was lost, OFCCP and Navient will work
together to provide a replacement check before any funds are redistributed. Any
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check that remains uncashed 180 days after the initial date the check was mailed to
the Eligible Applicant will be void. With respect to any uncashed funds, if the total
amount of uncashed checks results in a payment of $30 or more to each Eligible
Applicant who cashed their first check, Navient will make a second distribution to all
Eligible Applicants who cashed their first check.

d. Tax Payments, Forms and Reporting. Navient will pay Navient’s share of social
security withholdings and any other tax payments required by law from additional
funds separate from the Settlement Fund. Navient shall mail to each Eligible
Applicant an IRS Form W-2 for that portion of the payment representing back pay
and an IRS Form 1099 for that portion of the payment representing interest (if
required). These IRS forms will be provided to the Eligible Applicants either at the
time of payment, electronically or with the settlement checks, or at the end of the
year. No Eligible Applicant will be required to complete a W-4 or W-9 in order to
receive payments under this settlement. In addition, OFCCP will report the terms of
this settlement to the IRS via a Form 1098-F.

3. Notice Process

a. Mutual Obligations under the Notice Process. The Notice Process set forth in this
agreement is intended to provide Affected Applicants a meaningful opportunity to
understand their rights and obligations and act on them in a timely manner As
specified in the Timeline and as otherwise necessary to fulfill this Agreement,
Navient and OFCCP will regularly meet and confer in person, by phone and/or by
email on the Notice Process to determine how best to carry out the Notice provisions
of this Agreement, and to decide whether any activity, deadline or document should
be modified. OFCCP and Navient agree not to unreasonably withhold consent to
reasonable modifications proposed by either party.

b. Notice Documents. Navient will distribute Notice Documents to Affected
Applicants identified in Attachments A-1, A-2, and A-3 consistent with the Notice
Documents contained in Attachment C. The Notice Documents include a Notice,
Release of Claims, and Information Verification Form. The Notice Documents make
clear the information about the settlement is being provided by or on behalf of the
U.S. Department of Labor and Navient. As specified in the Timeline and as
otherwise necessary to fulfill this Agreement, the parties will meet and confer on any
reasonable modifications of the sample Notice Documents or additions to the
materials distributed by Navient, if proposed by either party.

c. Timeline. Attachment B sets forth the agreed Timeline for Notice and for the parties’
other obligations under this Agreement. The parties will meet and confer on any
reasonable modifications to the Timeline proposed by either party.

d. Search for Affected Applicants. The parties will work together to obtain contact
information for Affected Applicants by the date set forth in the Timeline.
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Distribution of Mail Notice to Affected Applicants. By the date set forth in the
Timeline, Navient will send by regular first-class mail copies of all Notice
Documents, as defined above, and a postage-paid return envelope to the best available
mailing address for each Affected Applicant. If envelopes from the initial mail notice
are returned with forwarding addresses, Navient will re-mail the Notice Documents
within ten (10) days of receipt of the forwarding address.

Based on the response to the initial mail notice, the parties will meet and confer by
the date set forth in the Timeline to assess the results of the initial mail notice and to
ensure that the second round of mail notice maximizes the potential response rate. A
second mail notice will be sent to Affected Applicants with valid addresses who fail
to respond to the first mail notice, unless the parties agree otherwise.

Notice Deadline. The final deadline for any Affected Applicant to respond to the
notice is set forth in the Timeline. The parties will prominently display this deadline
on all materials they distribute on paper or electronically regarding this Agreement
and explain that failure to respond by this deadline will result in a forfeiture of any
relief provided by this Agreement. Any Affected Applicant (who cannot be located or
who fails to submit completed Notice Forms within the timeframes established in the
Timeline will not be eligible for any financial remedy under this Agreement.

. Technical Assistance. The parties will timely respond to any inquiries from
Affected Applicants using information consistent with this Agreement and the Notice
Documents and will document all inquiries and the result.

. Exchange of Information Regarding Affected Applicants. Navient and OFCCP
will timely exchange information regarding Affected Applicants, including updated
contact information and the results of any technical assistance provided.

Final List of Eligible Applicants. The Final List will include all Affected
Applicants who timely respond to the Notice by the deadline set forth in the Timeline
and whose eligibility is verified by OFCCP. The parties will establish the Final List
by the date set forth in the Timeline. The parties will meet and confer on any
outstanding issues or questions regarding the Final List. OFCCP shall make the final
determinations of eligibility but will make every effort to negotiate in good faith to
resolve any dispute about the Final List. Navient will provide to OFCCP any
available information necessary to determine the Final List.

Documentation of Payments. By the deadline set forth in the Timeline, Navient will
provide OFCCP with copies of cancelled checks or electronic documentation of all
payments to Eligible Applicants, including the amounts paid, the date payment was
sent, the date payment was received or the check cashed, and any uncashed or
returned checks. In the event of a second distribution, Navient will provide a similar
documentation on the second distribution.
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k. Navient’s Expenses. Navient will pay all expenses associated with carrying out its
duties pursuant to this Section, from funds separate and apart from the amount
designated in this Agreement for the Settlement.

V. OFCCP Monitoring Period

1. Recordkeeping. Navient agrees to retain all records relevant to OFCCP’s Findings cited
in Section III above and the reports submitted in compliance with Paragraph 2, below.
These records include records or data used to generate the required reports. Navient will
retain the records until this Agreement expires or for the time period consistent with
regulatory requirements, whichever is later.

2. Navient Reports.

In accordance with the Timeline, Navient agrees to furnish OFCCP with copies of cashed
checks or electronic documentation of payment from the settlement disbursement to
Eligible Applicants. Navient’s first and final progress report is due on or before April 5,
2025, and will include copies of cashed checks or electronic documentation of payment
from the settlement disbursement to Eligible Applicants.

Navient will submit this report to Mid=-Atlantic Regional Director Samuel B. Maiden at
(@dol.gov and Director of Regional Operations

(@dol.gov. Navient and OFCCP have a common interest in the
information being provided in the reports pursuant to this Agreement. To the extent that
any of the information Navient provides in accordance with this Agreement is
customarily kept private or closely=held, and Navient believes it should remain
confidential under Exemption 4 of the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) in the event
of a FOIA request, Navient will provide such information to OFCCP marked as
“Confidential.” In the event of a FOIA request, OFCCP will treat any such information
received as confidential information to the maximum extent possible under the law.

3. Close of Monitoring Period and Termination of Agreement. This Agreement shall
remain in effect until the Monitoring Period is completed. The Monitoring Period will
close when OFCCP accepts Navient’s progress report, as set forth in Part II, Paragraph 10
above. If OFCCP fails to notify Navient in writing within sixty (60) days of the date of
the progress report that Navient has not fulfilled all of its obligations under the
Agreement, OFCCP will be deemed to have accepted the progress report and the
Monitoring Period and this Agreement will terminate. If OFCCP notifies Navient within
the allotted time that it has not fulfilled all of its obligations, this Agreement is
automatically extended until the date that OFCCP determines Navient has met all of its
obligations under the Agreement.
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VI.  Signatures

The person signing this Agreement on behalf of Navient personally warrants that they are fully
authorized to do so, that Navient has entered into this Agreement voluntarily and with full
knowledge of its effect, and that execution of this Agreement is fully binding on Navient.

This Agreement is hereby executed by and between the Office of Federal Contract Compliance
Programs and Navient Corporation.

John Kane
Executive Vice President and Group President — Business Processing Solutions
Navient Corporation

DATE: 09/08/2023

Samuel B. Maiden
Regional Director
OFCCP, Mid-Atlantic Region

DATE: 09/08/2023

Iarmen \l avarro

Regional Director
OFCCP, Midwest Region

DATE:

Attachments:

A. List of Affected Applicants
B. Timeline
C. Notice Documents
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ATTACHMENT A -9

LIST OF AFFECTED APPLICANTS
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ATTACHMENT A -2

LIST OF AFFECTED APPLICANTS

n Candidate Name
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|
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ATTACHMENT A -2

QE A TED APPLICANTS
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ATTACHMENT A -3

LIST OF AFFECTED APPLICANTS

Applicant Code & 35

# | “Candidate REF | APPDate 36
37

1 38
2 39
3 40
4 41
> 42
6 43
! 44
8 45
2 46
10 47
11 43
12 49
13 50
14 51
15 5
16 53
17 54
18 55
19 56
20 57
21 53
22 59
: ;
61

25 )
26 63
27 64
28 65
29 66
30 7
31 68
32 9
33 70
34 7

Page 15 of 47 -
A-3

Page 15 of 47




ATTACHMENT A -3

LIST OF AFFECTED APPLICANTS

72 109
73 110
74 111
75 112
76 113
77 114
78 115
79 116
80 117
81 118
82 119
83 120
84 121
85 122
86 123
87 124
88 125
89 126
90 127
91 128
92 129
93 130
94 131
95 132
96 133
97 134
98 135
99 136
100 137
101 138
102 139
103 140
104 141
105 142
106 143
107 144
108 145
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ATTACHMENT A -3

LIST OF AFFECTED APPLICANTS

146 183
147 184
148 185
149 186
150 187
151 188
152 189
153 190
154 191
155 1892
156 193
157 194
158 195
159 196
160 197
161 198
162 199
163 200
164 201
165 202
166 203
167 204
168 205
169 206
170 207
171 208
172 209
173 210
174 211
175 212
176 213
177 214
178 215
179 216
180 217
181 218
182 219
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ATTACHMENT A -3

LIST OF AFFECTED APPLICANTS

220 257
221 258
222 259
223 260
224 261
225 262
226 263
227 264
228 265
229 266
230 267
231 268
232 269
233 270
234 271
235 272
236 273
237 274
238 275
239 276
240 277
241 278
242 279
243 280
244 281
245 282
246 283
247 284
248 285
249 286
250 287
251 288
252 289
253 290
254 291
255 292
256 293
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ATTACHMENT A -3

LIST OF AFFECTED APPLICANTS

294 331
295 332
296 333
297 334
298 335
299 336
300 337
301 338
302 339
303 340
304 341
305 342
306 343
307 344
308 345
309 346
310 347
311 348
312 349
313 350
314 351
315 352
316 353
317 354
318 355
319 356
320 357
321 358
322 359
323 360
324 361
325 362
326 363
327 364
328 365
329 366
330 367
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ATTACHMENT A -3

LIST OF AFFECTED APPLICANTS

368 405
369 406
370 407
371 408
372 409
373 410
374 411
375 412
376 413
377 414
378 415
379 416
380 417
381 418
382 419
383 420
384 421
385 422
386 423
387 424
388 425
389 426
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391 428
392 429
393 430
394 431
395 432
396 433
397 434
398 435
399 436
400 437
401 438
402 439
403 440
404 441
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ATTACHMENT A -3

LIST OF AFFECTED APPLICANTS

442 479
443 480
444 481
445 482
446 483
447 484
448 485
449 486
450 487
451 488
452 489
453 490
454 491
455 492
456 493
457 494
458 495
459 496
460 497
461 498
462 499
463 500
464 501
465 502
466 503
467 504
468 505
469 506
470 507
471 508
472 509
473 510
474 511
475 512
476 513
477 514
478 515
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ATTACHMENT A -3

LIST OF AFFECTED APPLICANTS

516 553
517 554
518 555
519 556
520 557
521 558
522 559
523 560
524 561
525 562
526 563
527 564
528 565
529 566
530 567
531 568
532 569
533 570
534 571
535 572
536 573
537 574
538 575
539 576
540 577
541 578
542 579
543 580
544 581
545 582
546 583
547 584
548 585
549 586
550 587
551 588
552 589
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ATTACHMENT A -3

LIST OF AFFECTED APPLICANTS

590 627
591 628
592 629
593 630
594 631
595 632
596 633
597 634
598 635
599 636
600 637
601 638
602 639
603 640
604 641
605 642
606 643
607 644
608 645
609 646
610 647
611 648
612 649
613 650
614 651
615 652
616 653
617 654
618 655
619 656
620 657
621 658
622 659
623 660
624 661
625 662
626 663

Page 23 of 47
A-3

Page 23 of 47




ATTACHMENT A -3

LIST OF AFFECTED APPLICANTS

664 701
665 702
666 703
667 704
668 705
669 706
670 707
671 708
672 709
673 710
674 711
675 712
676 713
677 714
678 715
679 716
680 717
681 718
682 719
683 720
684 721
685 722
686 723
687 724
688 725
689 726
690 727
691 728
692 729
693 730
694 731
695 732
696 733
697 734
698 735
699 736
700 737
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ATTACHMENT A -3

LIST OF AFFECTED APPLICANTS

738 775
739 776
740 777
741 778
742 779
743 780
744 781
745 782
746 783
747 784
748 785
749 786
750 787
751 788
752 789
753 790
754 791
755 792
756 793
757 794
758 795
759 796
760 797
761 798
762 799
763 800
764 801
765 802
766 803
767 804
768 805
769 806
770 807
771 808
772 809
773 810
774 811
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ATTACHMENT A -3

LIST OF AFFECTED APPLICANTS

812 849
813 850
814 851
815 852
816 853
817 854
818 855
819 856
820 857
821 858
822 859
823 860
824 861
825 862
826 863
827 864
828 865
829 866
830 867
831 868
832 869
833 870
834 871
835 872
836 873
837 874
838 875
839 876
840 877
841 878
842 879
843 880
844 881
845 882
846 883
847 884
848 885
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ATTACHMENT A -3

LIST OF AFFECTED APPLICANTS

886 923
887 924
888 925
889 926
890 927
891 928
892 929
893 930
894 931
895 932
896 933
897 934
898 935
899 936
900 937
901 938
902 939
903 940
904 941
905 942
906 943
907 944
908 945
909 946
910 947
911 948
912 949
913 950
914 951
915 952
916 953
917 954
918 955
919 956
920 957
921 958
922 959
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ATTACHMENT A -3

LIST OF AFFECTED APPLICANTS

960 997
961 998
962 999
963 1000
964 1001
965 1002
966 1003
967 1004
968 1005
969 1006
970 1007
971 1008
972 1009
973 1010
974 1011
975 1012
976 1013
977 1014
978 1015
979 1016
980 1017
981 1018
982 1018
983 1020
984 1021
985 1022
986 1023
987 1024
988 1025
989 1026
990 1027
991 1028
992 1029
993 1030
994 1031
995 1032
996 1033
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ATTACHMENT A -3

LIST OF AFFECTED APPLICANTS

1034 1071
1035 1072
1036 1073
1037 1074
1038 1075
1039 1076
1040 1077
1041 1078
1042 1079
1043 1080
1044 1081
1045 1082
1046 1083
1047 1084
1048 1085
1048 1086
1050 1087
1051 1088
1052 1089
1053 1090
1054 1091
1055 1092
1056 1093
1057 1094
1058 1095
1059 1096
1060 1097
1061 1098
1062 1099
1063 1100
1064 1101
1065 1102
1066 1103
1067 1114
1068 1105
1069 1106
1070 1107
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ATTACHMENT A -3

LIST OF AFFECTED APPLICANTS

1108 1145
1109 1146
1110 1147
1111 1148
1112 1149
1113 1150
1114 1151
1115 1152
1116 1153
1117 1154
1118 1155
1119 1156
1120 1157
1121 1158
1122 1159
1123 1160
1124 1061
1125 1162
1126 1163
1127 1164
1128 1165
1129 1166
1130 1167
1131 1168
1132 1169
1133 1170
1134 1171
1135 1172
1136 1173
1137 1174
1138 1175
1139 1176
1140 1177
1141 1178
1142 1179
1143 1180
1144 1181
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ATTACHMENT A -3

LIST OF AFFECTED APPLICANTS

1182 1219
1183 1220
1184 1221
1185 1222
1186 1223
1187 1224
1188 1225
1189 1226
1190 1227
1191 1228
1192 1229
1193 1230
1194 1231
1195 1232
1196 1233
1197 1234
1198 1235
1199 1236
1200 1237
1201 1238
1202 1239
1203 1240
1204 1241
1205 1242
1206 1243
1207 1244
1208 1245
1209 1246
1210 1247
1211 1248
1212 1249
1213 1250
1214 1251
1215 1252
1216 1253
1217 1254
1218 1255
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ATTACHMENT A -3

LIST OF AFFECTED APPLICANTS

1256 1293
1257 1294
1258 1295
1259 1296
1260 1297
1261 1298
1262 1299
1263 1300
1264 1301
1265 1302
1266 1303
1267 1304
1268 1305
1269 1306
1270 1307
1271 1308
1272 1309
1273 1310
1274 1311
1275 1312
1276 1313
1277 1314
1278 1315
1279 1316
1280 1317
1281 1318
1282 1319
1283 1320
1284 1321
1285 1322
1286 1323
1287 1324
1288 1325
1289 1326
1290 1327
1291 1328
1292 1329
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ATTACHMENT A -3

LIST OF AFFECTED APPLICANTS

1330 1367
1331 1368
1332 1369
1333 1370
1334 1371
1335 1372
1336 1373
1337 1374
1338 1375
1339 1376
1340 1377
1341 1378
1342 1379
1343 1380
1344 1381
1345 1382
1346 1383
1347 1384
1348 1385
1349 1386
1350 1387
1351 1388
1352 1389
1353 1390
1354 1391
1355 1392
1356 1393
1357 1394
1358 1395
1359 1396
1360 1397
1361 1398
1362 1399
1363 1400
1364 1401
1365 1402
1366 1403
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ATTACHMENT A -3

LIST OF AFFECTED APPLICANTS

1404 1441
1405 1442
1406 1443
1407 1444
1408 1445
1409 1446
1410 1447
1411 1448
1412 1449
1413 1450
1414 1451
1415 1452
1416 1453
1417 1454
1418 1455
1419 1456
1420 1457
1421 1458
1422 1459
1423 1460
1424 1461
1425 1462
1426 1463
1427 1464
1428 1465
1429 1466
1430 1467
1431 1468
1432 1469
1433 1470
1434 1471
1435 1472
1436 1473
1437 1474
1438 1475
1439 1476
1440 1477
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ATTACHMENT A -3

LIST OF AFFECTED APPLICANTS

1478 1515
1479 1516
1480 1517
1481 1518
1482 1519
1483 1520
1484 1521
1485 1522
1486 1523
1487 1524
1488 1525
1489 1526
1490 1527
1491 1528
1492 1529
1493 1530
1494 1531
1495 1532
1496 1533
1497 1534
1498 1535
1499 1536
1500 1537
1501 1538
1502 1539
1503 1540
1504 1541
1505 1542
1506 1543
1507 1544
1508 1545
1509 1546
1510 1547
1511 1548
1512 1549
1513 1550
1514 1551
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ATTACHMENT A -3

LIST OF AFFECTED APPLICANTS

1552 1589
1553 1590
1554 1591
1555 1592
1556 1593
1557 1594
1558 1595
1559 1596
1560 1597
1561 1598
1562 1599
1563 1600
1564 1601
1565 1602
1566 1603
1567 1604
1568 1605
1569 1606
1570 1607
1571 1608
1572 1609
1573 1610
1574 1611
1575 1612
1576 1613
1577 1614
1578 1615
1579 1616
1580 1617
1581 1618
1582 1619
1583 1620
1584 1621
1585 1622
1586 1623
1587 1624
1588 1625
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ATTACHMENT A -3

LIST OF AFFECTED APPLICANTS

1626 1663
1627 1664
1628 1665
1629 1666
1630 1667
1631 1668
1632 1669
1633 1670
1634 1671
1635 1672
1636 1673
1637 1674
1638 1675
1639 1676
1640 1677
1641 1678
1642 1679
1643 1680
1644 1681
1645 1682
1646 1683
1647 1684
1648 1685
1649 1686
1650 1687
1651 1688
1652 1689
1653 1690
1654 1691
1655 1692
1656 1693
1657 1694
1658 1695
1659 1696
1660 1697
1661 1698
1662 1699
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ATTACHMENT A -3

LIST OF AFFECTED APPLICANTS

1700 1737
1701 1738
1702 1739
1703 1740
1704 1741
1705 1742
1706 1743
1707 1744
1708 1745
1709 1746
1710 1747
1711 1748
1712 1749
1713 1750
1714 1751
1715 1752
1716 1753
1717 1754
1718 1755
1719 1756
1720 1757
1721 1758
1722 1759
1723 1760
1724 1761
1725 1762
1726 1763
1727 1764
1728 1765
1729 1766
1730 1767
1731 1758
1732 1769
1733 1770
1734 1771
1735 1772
1736 1773
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ATTACHMENT A -3

LIST OF AFFECTED APPLICANTS

1774
1775
1776
1777
1778
1779
1780
1781
1782
1783
1784
1785
1786
1787
1788
1789
1790
1791
1792
1793
1794
1795
1796
1797
1798
1799
1800
1801
1802
1803
1804
1805
1806
1807
1808
1809
1810

1811
1812
1813
1814
1815
1816
1817
1818
1819
1820
1821
1822
1823
1824
1825
1826
1827
1828
1829
1830
1831
1832
1833
1834
1835
1836
1837
1838
1839
1840
1841
1842
1843
1844
1845
1846
1847
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ATTACHMENT A -3

LIST OF AFFECTED APPLICANTS

1848
1849
1850
1851
1852
1853
1854
1855
1856
1857

| 1858 |
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ATTACHMENT B

ACTIVITY DATE

Navient mails Notice Documents (First Mailing) October 15, 2023

Navient provides OFCCP with a status update, identifying by

candidate number and name the status of Affected Applicant October 29, 2023
responses.
Deadline for Affected Applicants to respond to First Notice November 14, 2023

Navient and OFCCP meet to discuss results of initial mail notice
and Navient notifies OFCCP of undeliverable mailings and provides
OFCCP with a list of individuals who have not responded to the first

mailing (name and last known contact information)

November 24, 2023

OFCCP Provides updated contact information to Navient December 4, 2023

Navient Mails notice Documents (Second Mailing) December 18, 2023

Navient provides OFCCP with a status update to list the name and
candidate number identifier of all Affected Applicants and identifies December 28, 2023
whether each applicant has responded to the notice.

Deadline for Affected Applicants to Respond to Second Mailing January 7, 2024

Navient provides OFCCP with list of Eligible Applicants January 21, 2024
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ATTACHMENT B

OFCCP Reviews and Approves Final List and distribution amounts

February 4, 2024

Navient mails checks to Eligible Applicants (First Distribution)

February 25, 2024

Navient notifies OFCCP of any checks returned as undeliverable or
remain uncashed.

August 23, 2024

Navient Mails Checks to Eligible Applicants, if necessary. (Second
Distribution)

September 7, 2024

Second Checks uncashed are void. March 6, 2025
Additional Reporting Requirements
ACTIVITY DATE
Progress Report due April 5, 2025
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ATTACHMENT C

Dear Affected Applicant:

Navient Corporation (“Navient”) and the Department of Labor's Office of Federal Contract Compliance
Programs (“OFCCP”) have entered into a Conciliation Agreement (“Agreement”) to remedy violations of
Executive Order 11246 (“E.O. 11246) that OFCCP found during a compliance review of Navient’s
establishment. OFCCP found that during the period of [DATE] through [DATE] (Review Period)
Navient did not comply with the nondiscrimination requirements of E.O. 11246 for hiring
[DISFAVORED GROUP(S)] applicants for NAME OF JOB(S)/ POSITION(S)]. Navient denies any
violation of E.O. 11246 and there has not been any adjudicated finding that Navient violated any laws.
OFCCP and Navient entered into the Agreement to resolve this matter without resorting to further legal
proceedings. You have been identified as an individual who applied for, but did not receive, a
[POSITION NAME] who may be eligible for participation in the financial settlement.

Under this Agreement, you may be eligible to receive a payment representing a pro rata share of back
pay and interest, less deductions required by law. Under the terms of this Agreement it may take up to
eight months from the date of this Notice before you receive a payment. In order to be eligible for a
payment, you must complete, sign, and return the enclosed Information Verification Form and Release
of Claims Form. You should complete and mail back the forms as soon as possible to the name and
address listed below:
NAME)
(POSITION)
(CONTRACTOR)
(ADDRESS)

In order for you to be eligible to participate in the settlement, your documents must be
postmarked no later than [date]

You may use the enclosed postage-paid return envelope to return the completed and signed
Information Verification Form and Release of Claims Form.
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ATTACHMENT C

If you have any questions you may call [Navient POC] at [PHONE NUMBER], or OFCCP’s
Mid-Atlantic Regional Office at (215) 861-5765. You may also email OFCCP at ofccp-
ma(@dol.gov.

IF YOU FAIL TO COMPLETE AND RETURN THE ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS TO NAVIENT
WITHIN 30 DAYS OF THE DATE THE ENVELOPE CONTAINING THIS NOTICE WAS
POSTMARKED, YOU WILL NOT BE ELIGIBLE TO RECEIVE A PAYMENT.

Sincerely,

[Name]

Enclosures:
Information Verification Form

Release of Claims Form
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ATTACHMENT C

INFORMATION VERIFICATION FORM

You must complete this form in order to be eligible for the monetary payment under the terms of
the Conciliation Agreement (“Agreement”) between Navient Corporation (“Navient”) and the
Department of Labor’s Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs (“OFCCP”). Please print
legibly, except for the signature.

Name:

Address:

Telephone Nos.: Home Cell Work

Email Address:

Notify Navient at the address below if your address, phone number, or email address changes within the
next twelve months.

Your Social Security Number or Tax Identification Number (to be used for tax purposes only):

IF YOU FAIL TO COMPLETE AND RETURN THE ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS TO THE
ADDRESS BELOW BY [insert date] YOU WILL NOT BE ELIGIBLE TO RECEIVE A

PAYMENT.
NAME)
(POSITION)
(CONTRACTOR)

(ADDRESS)
I, (print name) , certify the above is true and correct.
Signature Date
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RELEASE OF CLAIMS UNDER EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246

PLEASE CAREFULLY READ THIS NOTICE BEFORE COMPLETING THIS RELEASE OF
CLAIMS. YOU MUST RETURN A SIGNED RELEASE OF CLAIMS TO RECEIVE
MONEY FROM THE SETTLEMENT BETWEEN NAVIENT AND OFCCP.

This Release of Claims under Executive Order 11246 ("Release") is a legal document. This document
states that in return for Navient Corporation ("Navient") paying you money, you agree that you will not
file any lawsuit against Navient for allegedly violating Executive Order 11246 in connection with its
selection procedures for applicants for [POSITIONS] positions during [TIME FRAME]. It also says that
Navient does not admit it violated any laws. This Release says you have had sufficient time to look at the
Release of Claims; to talk with others about the Release of Claims, including an attorney if you choose;
and that no one pressured you into signing the Release of Claims. Finally, it says that if you do not sign
and return the Release of Claims by a certain date, you will not receive any money from the settlement
between OFCCP and Navient.

In consideration of the payment of at least $ (less deductions required by law) by Navient to me,
which I agree is acceptable, I (print name) agree to the following:

L

I hereby waive, release and forever discharge Navient, its predecessors, successors, related entities,
parents, subsidiaries, affiliates and organizations, and its and their shareholders, directors, officers,
employees, agents, successors, and assigns, of and from any and all actions, causes of action, damages,
liabilities, and claims arising out of or actionable under Executive Order 11246, as amended, which I or
my representatives (heirs, executors, administrators, or assigns) have or may have which relate in any way
to my non-selection for employment as a [POSITION] at any time through the effective date of this
Release.

II.

I understand that Navient denies that it treated me unlawfully or unfairly in any way and that Navient
entered into a Conciliation Agreement with the U.S. Department of Labor, Office of Federal Contract
Compliance Programs ("OFCCP") and agreed to make the payment described above to resolve alleged
disparities in hiring found during an OFCCP compliance review. I further agree that the payment of the
aforesaid sum by Navient to me is not to be construed as an admission of any liability by Navient.

II.
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I declare that I have read this Release and that I have had a full opportunity to consider and understand its
terms and to consult with my advisors and seek legal advice. I further declare that I have decided of my
own free will to sign this Release.

IV.

I understand that if I do not sign this Release and return it to the contact listed in the enclosed Notice on
or before [date], [ will not be entitled to receive any payment (less deductions required by law) from
Navient.

Print Name

Signature Date
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